VILLAGE OF LAKEVIEW COUNCIL MEETING
January 5, 2026

Mayor Elaine Fagan-Moore called the meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call:

Mel Rotroff Elaine Fagan — Moore Josh Oakley

Ryan Shoffstall Heather Kegg Daniel Bey
Clayton Hooker Gary Bias List of signed in
guests following

Randy Kaehler Dave Scott

Todd Mackesy Washington Twp

Jeff Hertig Joe Ferryman

Mayor Elaine Fagan-Moore opened the meeting with moment of silence in memory of Robin
Reames.

Minutes from last meeting stand as is. Todd Mackesy made a motion to accept the minutes
from 12/1/2025, Randy Kaehler seconded. Council approved unanimously.

Mel Rotroff made a motion to pay the bills (12/1-12/31/2025), Clayton Hooker seconded.
Council approved unanimously.

Ryan Shoffstall made a motion to accept the bank reconciliation for November 2025, Mel Rotroff
seconded. Council approved unanimously.

Mel Rotroff made a motion to accept the utility adjustments (11/24-12/16/2025), Clayton Hooker
seconded. Council approved unanimously.

Deputy Travis Davidson reported that they had 92 calls for service in December.

Gary Bias told Council that he issued 1 Zoning Permit since the last meeting. He said that our
new zoning maps are finished, they just need to be reviewed and signed. He asked council if
they were ok with him sending out warnings to residents with unpermitted storage containers.
Mel Rotroff noted that the last Zoning Variance Meeting someone wanted to bring in a semi
trailer for storage and that he had seen one remaining from tornado recovery. Gary Bias said
that they need to be permitted as an accessory building. Elaine Fagan-Moore said that she
thought we needed to proceed with the warnings. Todd Mackesy wondered if these unpermitted
units were from before or after the tornado, no one was sure. Clayton Hooker asked what it
said about storage containers in the Zoning Rules. Gary Bias answered that there was nothing
specific saying shipping container, just storage, but that will be updated. Todd Mackesy made a
motion to proceed with courtesy warnings, Ryan Shoffstall seconded. Council approved
unanimously. Randy Kaehler asked if they could have a storage building if there was no
primary building/residence. Gary Bias replied that accessory buildings without a primary



structure were not permitted without a variance. Gary Bias told Council that Brad Bodenmiller at
the LUC is offering a training for new council members, Mayors, Administrators, Fiscal Officers,
Planning Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals members, etc. It counts as a training session,
not a meeting. He is thinking late February. Daniel Bey added that he had taken the course
and recommended it. Jeff Hertig said that he was interested, but would not be available in
February. Gary Bias said that he would get a list of possible dates. Gary Bias also said that he
hopes to have all his proposed changes to the Zoning regulations to the Planning Commission
by the end of January, and he will be asking for Council input. Lastly, Gary Bias updated
Council that all of the Logan County Land Bank’s scheduled demos were complete, with the
exception of tree stumps that need to be removed at the property that will house the new Village
Offices.

Dave Scott told Council that he needs to set meetings once the 2026 Committees List is
finalized to bring all the new members up to speed.

Heather Kegg noted that she needed to know who would take over as our LUC rep as soon as
possible. After a brief discussion of duties and purpose, Jeff Hertig volunteered to be the 2026
LUC rep.

Mayor Elaine Fagan-Moore asked for nominations for Council President. All members
nominated and voted for Mel Rotroff to be the 2026 Council President.

Mayor Elaine Fagan-Moore wanted to applaud Fire Chief Joe Ferryman and Assistant Chief
Josh Oakley for their financial leadership of the Fire Department. She stated that even with a
tornado and a frivolous lawsuit, they have kept the department budget in great shape. She
thanked them for updating values for the insurance company so we would have more issues,
and for getting all aspects of the department back on solid ground, including number of
volunteers, continuing education, grants, and reporting.

Fire Chief Joe Ferryman said that several years ago when they took over, the department was
out of compliance with the state fire department. He noted that it took he and Josh about 6
months to catch up on the reporting. This allows the department to be eligible for Grants. He
told Council that they received about $18,000 for MARCS equipment, and were part of a
regional grant awarded for air packs. Joe Ferryman added that the department was in a very
positive place, and that they now had wonderful cooperation/relationships with other
departments, the EMS, and Washington Township Police Dept.

Assistant Fire Chief Josh Oakley told Council that they have been looking for another truck. He
noted that a new engine truck could easily be a million or more. He stated that their goal was to
get a new pumper truck. Ours is a 1989. The fleet is getting aged, and many new volunteers
cannot drive a manual transmission. He said that the Fireman’s Club will back them as well.
They are looking for a truck in good used shape, no more than 10 years old. They would like to
use a specialty broker, and will have our own inspections and view all records for a vehicle
before purchasing. He wanted to be sure that Council still supported this idea as there were
many new members. Council agreed that it was a good idea to search for a good used vehicle
and to hope for grant opportunities in the future. Jeff Hertig asked if grants were available for
just new trucks, or for used as well. Josh Oakley replied new only. Mel Rotroff asked how much



of the cost of a new truck grants covered. Josh replied 50-100%, with pumper costs being
around $500,000, and engines $750,000, $1 million, and up. He also added that a newer
pumper truck will have a much larger capacity and pump at a much higher gallons per minute
rate. Newer trucks also improve a department’s ISO rating, which affects resident insurance
costs, property values, etc.

Mayor Elaine Fagan-Moore noted that it was time to swear in a new Captain for the Fire
Department, Austin Johnston.

Chief Joe Ferryman said that Austin had a positive attitude and showed integrity and leadership.
Josh Oakley added that he had been a volunteer firefighter for 11 years.

Mayor Elaine Fagan-Moore than swore in new Captain Austin Johnston.
Mayor Elaine Fagan-Moore then provided the reading of the following Resolutions.

RESOLUTION NO: 2026-01
RESOLUTION ADOPTING A CYBERSECURITY POLICY

Mel Rotroff made a motion to pass Resolution No: 2026-01, Randy Kaehler seconded. Council
approved unanimously.

RESOLUTION NO: 2026-02
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SURPLUS VILLAGE PROPERTY BY
INTERNET AUCTION

Clayton Hooker made a motion to pass Resolution No: 2026-02, Mel Rotroff seconded. Council
approved unanimously.

Mayor Elaine Fagan-Moore asked the Council to introduce themselves and say a little
something.

Randy Kaehler noted that he had been on Council for 6 years and really enjoyed doing it.
Clayton Hooker noted that he was a new member, and wanted to help improve the Village.

Mel Rotroff noted that he had been on Council the same 6 years as Randy and that he was here
for the betterment of Lakeview, and that he had originally ran at Ryan’s request.

Mayor Elaine Fagan-Moore noted that this was her 3™ year as Mayor and that she had survived
baptism by fire. She said that she loves this town, it is her home, and that she would do
anything for the people.

Jeff Hertig noted that he moved to the Indian Lake area about 20 years ago and had been living
in Lakeview for the last 4. He stated that he was a retired engineer, and that he was looking
forward to helping Lakeview build back/become better and stronger.

Todd Mackesy noted that he was a “Lake Rat”, and he misses old Lakeview and all of its
community events and hopes to bring some of that back.

Ryan Shoffstall noted that he was the former Mayor of Lakeview and had served for many
years. He said after leaving that position with the Village, he realized he still wanted to be a part
of it, and wanted to help out.



Mel Rotroff made a motion to adjourn at 6:45, Todd Mackesy seconded. Council approved
unanimously.

The next council meeting will be Monday, February 2™, 2026.



